
Page # 1 of 1 Posted: July 1, 2015 
 

REV 10/30/2014 
PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUES 286.0105:  ANY PERSON WHO DESIRES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION AT THIS MEETING WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR 
THIS PURPOSE MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED, WHICH SUCH 
WRITTEN RECORD IS NOT PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN. 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUTE 286.26: PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES NEEDING ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT 
KATHY RATHEL, 300 WEST PLANT STREET, WINTER GARDEN, FL 34787, (407) 656-4111, EXT 5149 - 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
To: Eric Weiss – Chairman 

Will Hawthorne – Vice Chairman 
Mark DeFuso 
Heather Gantt 
Gerald Jowers 
David Kassander 
Mark Maciel 
 

Copy to: Mike Bollhoefer 
Dan Langley 
Kurt Ardaman 
Ed Williams 
Stephen Pash 
Kelly Carson 
Nadine Avola 
Jessica Frye 

 
RE: Agenda – July 6, 2015 at 6:30 PM 

Commission Chambers, City Hall 
 300 West Plant Street, Winter Garden 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE JUNE 1, 2015 MEETING  
 

ANNEXATION / FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT / REZONING (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 

4. 420 Roper Road – Sonata Health Care/P. Proffer/New Horizons Christian Church 
(Serenades by Sonata) PUD Rezoning 
Parcel ID # 35-22-27-0000-00-057 

 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 
 

5. 1205 E. Fullers Cross Road – Gilkey FX, LLC (Oak Trail) 
Parcel ID # 12-22-27-0000-00-005 & -074 

 

VARIANCE (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 

6. 16303 Marsh Road – M&M Fort Myers Holding, LLC (Twin Waters Entrance Wall Sign) 
Parcel ID # 05-23-27-0000-00-005 

 

7. 12902 Roper Road – Sift Oaks Investments, LLC (Canopy Oaks Entrance) 
Parcel ID # 36-22-27-0000-00-012 

 

8. 46 W. Vining Street – Frank & Jacqueline Browder 
Parcel ID # 23-22-27-2468-00-900 

 

ADJOURN to the next regular Planning and Zoning Board meeting on Monday, August 3, 2015 
at 6:30 p.m. in City Hall Commission Chambers, 300 W. Plant Street, 1st floor. 

For More Information, Contact: 
Kathy Rathel 

Customer Service Technician 
City of Winter Garden  
300 West Plant Street 

Winter Garden, FL 34787 
407.656.4111 ext. 5149 

krathel@cwgdn.com 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD AGENDA  

mailto:krathel@


 

 

JUNE 1, 2015 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 1 
 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

JUNE 1, 2015 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE / INVOCATION 

Chairman Eric Weiss called the meeting of the City of Winter Garden Planning and Zoning 
Board to order at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall Commission Chambers.  A moment of silence 
was followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
The roll was called and a quorum was declared present. 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 

Chairman Eric Weiss, Vice-Chairman Will Hawthorne, and Board Members: Mark DeFuso 
(arrived at 6:32 pm), Heather Gantt, and David Kassander 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Gerald Jowers (unexcused) and Mark Maciel (excused)  

STAFF PRESENT: 
City Attorney Kurt Ardaman, Community Development Director Ed Williams, Community 
Development Manager Steve Pash, Planner II Kelly Carson, Planner I Jessica Frye, and 
recording secretary Kathleen Rathel 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Motion by David Kassander to approve the regular meeting minutes of May 4, 2015 
and seconded by Eric Weiss.  Motion carried unanimously 4 - 0. 

 
ANNEXATION / FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT / REZONING (PUBLIC HEARING) 
4. 360 W. Story Road – Jesus Manuel Sanchez and Yoselina Aguirre Palacios 

(ANNEXATION, FLU and ZONING) 
This project was tabled to the July 6, 2015 Planning & Zoning meeting. 

 
(Board Member Mark DeFuso arrived at 6:32 p.m.) 
 
5. 161 S. Boyd Street – Kelso Investments, LLC (REZONING) 

Community Development Manager Pash presented a request for rezoning of a 0.19 +/- acre 
property located at 161 S. Boyd Street.  The property is located on the east side of South 
Boyd Street, north of West Smith Street and south of Tremaine Street.  The applicant has 
requested to rezone the R-2 property to C-1 Central Commercial District to convert the 

DRAFT



 

JUNE 1, 2015 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 2 
 

existing duplex into office space.  Staff has reviewed the application and recommends 
approval of Ordinance 15-52 subject to the conditions in the Staff Report. 

Motion by Eric Weiss to recommend approval of the Rezoning for 161 S. Boyd 
Street [Ordinance 15-52] with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda 
packet) and seconded by David Kassander.  Motion carried unanimously 5 - 0. 

 
PRELIMINARY PLAT 

6. 505 & 807 Avalon Road and 14966 Siplin Road – Mattamy Orlando, LLC  

Planner II Carson presented a Preliminary Plat request for 103 single family residential units 
within the 67.37 +/- acre Oxford Chase Subdivision.  The project includes the development 
of several recreation areas including a dog walk, tot lot and recreation trails.  The proposed 
Preliminary Plat is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the City of Winter 
Garden’s Code of Ordinances and the Planned Unit Development zoning.  Staff has reviewed 
the application and recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat subject to the conditions in 
the Staff Report. 

Board Member Kassander inquired about the density per buildable acre.  Ms. Carson replied 
it was 2.53 gross density including non-buildable areas. 
Board Member DeFuso asked if a traffic study had been done.  Ms. Carson replied the traffic 
study result helped determine their Fair Share contribution for the widening of Sunridge 
Boulevard and showed the surrounding roads have capacity.  Discussion ensued regarding 
the traffic study, the traffic impact of several new subdivisions being developed in the same 
area, and the Lift Station’s usage and maintenance by Oxford Chase HOA.  The question was 
also brought up about a possible future widening of Avalon Road and if any Right of Way 
would be reserved on these new developments to help with the traffic and quality of life. 

Motion by Mark DeFuso to recommend approval [of the Preliminary Plat for 505 
& 807 Avalon Road and 14966 Siplin Road with Staff Recommendations] (as 
provided in the agenda packet) and seconded by Heather Gantt.  Motion carried 
unanimously 5 - 0. 

 
SPECIAL EXCEPTION (PUBLIC HEARING) 

7. 3107 Daniels Road, Suite 102 (Main address: 3017 Daniels Road) – Verizon Wireless 
Planner II Carson requested this item be tabled to the July 6, 2015 Planning & Zoning 
Meeting to allow the applicant more time to work out their lease agreement issues. 

Motion by David Kassander to recommend tabling this item until the July 6, 2015 
P&Z Meeting and seconded by Eric Weiss.  Motion carried unanimously 5 - 0. 
 

8. 1450 Daniels Road – Harvest of Hope Greenhouse 
Community Development Manager Pash presented a Special Exception request for the 
property located at 1450 Daniels Road to allow construction of a greenhouse in an R-2 
Zoning District.  Ordinance 15-41 was recently adopted which allows greenhouses through a 
special exception if it meets the special exception requirements and design criteria.  Staff has 
reviewed the application and recommends approval of the greenhouse if it is redesigned to 
meet the requirements of Ordinance 15-41 subject to the conditions in the Staff Report. 

General discussion on the building materials required and size of the structure. 

DRAFT



 

JUNE 1, 2015 P&Z MINUTES PAGE 3 
 

Motion by Heather Gantt to recommend approval of the Special Exception permit 
for 1450 Daniels Road with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda 
packet) and seconded by Mark DeFuso.  Motion carried unanimously 5 - 0. 

 
9. 12801 W. Colonial Drive – Wild Hogs Scooters 

This project was tabled to the July 6, 2015 Planning & Zoning Meeting. 
 
VARIANCE (PUBLIC HEARING) 
10. 15344 Johns Lake Pointe Boulevard – Charles & Pamela Wraith 2004 Trust 

Community Development Manager Pash presented a request for a Variance for the property 
located at 15344 Johns Lake Pointe Boulevard.  The applicants are requesting the variance to 
allow an existing home to remain 2 feet inside a 10 foot wide drainage and wall easement 
and to allow the existing brick pavers to remain over the entire 10 foot wide drainage and 
wall easement.  The developer of the subdivision altered a platted easement without 
permission or Staff’s knowledge.  The 10 foot easement has been put back in place and this is 
the only lot that affected the house.  Staff has reviewed the application and recommends 
approval subject to the conditions listed in the Staff Report. 

General discussion ensued regarding the pavers within the easement. 

Resident Jeffrey Hull, 15326 Johns Lake Pointe, spoke in support of the variance and asked 
if they would be allowed to put pavers in the easement if it improved the integrity of the wall. 

Motion by Mark DeFuso to recommend approval of the Variance for 15344 Johns 
Lake Pointe Boulevard with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda 
packet) and seconded by David Kassander.  Motion carried unanimously 5 - 0. 

 
11. 628 Dharma Circle – David Nguyen 

Planner I Frye presented a Variance request for the 0.175 +/- acre property located at 628 
Dharma Circle within the Daniels Crossing Subdivision.  The applicant is requesting a 
variance to allow a solid roof aluminum screen structure to be built on the rear of the home at 
a 10 foot rear yard setback in lieu of the minimum required 20 foot rear yard setback.  Staff 
has reviewed the application and recommends approval subject to the conditions listed in the 
Staff Report. 

Board Member Weiss asked about clarification of the condition that the room not be allowed 
to be fully enclosed or become air conditioned space.  Ms. Frye explained that it meant no 
windows or fully blocked walls. 

Motion by David Kassander to recommend approval of the Variance for 628 
Dharma Circle with Staff Recommendations (as provided in the agenda packet) 
and seconded by Eric Weiss.  Motion carried unanimously 5 – 0. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:07 pm. 
 

ATTEST:  APPROVED: 
   

Customer Service Rep. Kathleen Rathel  Chairman Eric Weiss 
 

DRAFT



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 4 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  June 30, 2015 MEETING DATE: July 6, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: 420 Roper Road (REZONING) 
 PROJECT NAME Sonata West Orange Campus 
 PARCEL ID# 35-22-27-0000-00-057 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting a Rezoning to PUD to allow construction of a 

114 unit Assisted/Independent Living Facility at 420 Roper Road.  
  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Klima Weeks Civil Engineering, Inc. 
  
CURRENT ZONING: R-1 Single-Family Residential District 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: PUD Planned Unit Development 
  
CURRENT FLU: LR Low Density Residential 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 Applicant proposes to rezone a 7.15 +/- acre property from R-1 to 

PUD to allow construction of a 114 unit Assisted/Independent 
Living Facility. 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
  
 Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 15-55 subject to the 

conditions in the ordinance. 
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Apply for Site Plan Review 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 

Ordinance 15-55 
 



LOCATION MAP 
 

420 Roper Road 
 

PUD Rezoning 
 
 

 
 



 
 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO: PLANNING AND ZONING COMMITTEE 
PREPARED BY: STEVE PASH, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT MANAGER 
DATE: JUNE 30, 2015 
SUBJECT: REZONING 
  420 Roper Road (7.15+/- ACRES) 
  PARCEL ID # 35-22-27-0000-00-057 
    
APPLICANT: KLIMA WEEKS CIVIL ENGINEERING, INC. 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed project for compliance with the City of 
Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property is located on the north side of Roper Road west of Daniels Road and east of 
Winter Garden Vineland Road and is approximately 7.15 ± acres. The map below depicts the 
location of the subject property within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits: 

 



SonataWest Orange Campus Assisted Living PUD 
420 Roper Road (7.15 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 July 6, 2015 

Page 2 
 

 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone 7.15 ± acres of land Planned Unit Development (PUD). The 
subject property is located within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits, and carries the 
zoning designation R-1 (Single-Family Residential District) in the City of Winter Garden. The 
subject property is designated Low Density Residential on the Future Land Use Map of the 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 

EXISTING USE 
The subject property is currently vacant and is planted with trees. 
 

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The property located to the north is developed as a single-family neighborhood (Bradford Creek 
East) but no homes have beed constructed, is zoned PUD, and located in the City.  The property 
located to the east is developed with the Serenades by Sonata Memory Care Facility (a 35,000 
square foot, 42 unit, 54 bed Memory Care/Nursing Home Facility), is zoned PUD, and located in 
the City. The property to the west is unimproved vacant non-agricultural acreage zoned R-1, and 
located in the City. The properties to the south contain one large single-family lot and the Grove 
Park at Stonecrest single-family neighborhood, are zoned R-1 and PUD, and located in the City.  
 

PROPOSED USE 
The applicant proposes to develop the 7.15 ± acre site with a 134,000 square foot building 
containing a 115 unit Assisted/Independent Living Facility.  The building will also contain a 
kitchen and dining area, exercise room, common areas, and a swimming pool/garden area in the 
courtyard areas.  The pond is proposed to have have an outdoor recreation area built into it with a 
pavilion, bocce ball court, putting green, tables, restrooms, and a trail around the pond.  
According to the survey, a portion of the proposed pond is jurisdictional wetlands.  All wetlands 
shall be shown and addressed at the time of site plan submittal and if approved for removal shall 
be mitigated with the jurisdictional agencies.   
 
PUBLIC FACILITY ANALYSIS 
The property does not have a point of transportation access at this time because the property is 
vacant. However, if the property is developed as proposed by the applicant then access will be 
provided in the form of a driveway on Roper Road. The property will also have connectivity 
through cross access with the neighboring development (Serenades by Sonata) out to the 
signalized Daniels Road Roper Road intersection. 
Water, sewer, and reclaimed utilities by the City of Winter Garden will be required for any new 
development of the property. At such time that the property is developed, all necessary utility 
lines will be extended and connections made, all extension and connection costs shall be borne 
by the property owner. 
The City will provide garbage collection, police protection, and all other services regularly 
provided to City of Winter Garden residents including building permits. The property will be 
served by both Orange County Fire and Rescue and the City of Winter Garden Fire Department 
under the First Response System. 



SonataWest Orange Campus Assisted Living PUD 
420 Roper Road (7.15 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 July 6, 2015 

Page 3 
 

 
 

All concurrency requirements identified by the City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and 
Comprehensive Plan will be met by the proposed development. 
 
SUMMARY 
The proposed development is a reasonable and low intensity use of the land and would not 
generate a significant increase in traffic volume beyond that typically generated by single-family 
residential uses, and represents a use that is compatible with the area. 
 
Further, the adjacent property owners should not be negatively impacted as the surrounding 
properties are developed with single-family planned unit developments. A Community Meeting 
was held on June 15, 2015 at which time the applicant presented the proposal to develop a 
134,000 square foot Independent/Assisted Living Facility on the 7.15 ± acre property. The 
comments generated from the Community Meeting primarily focused on the building use, impact 
of site lighting on surrounding single-family residential communities, and questions about other 
development that has taken place in this area.  All concerns have been addressed by the applicant 
and staff through the use of the PUD zoning designation and limiting the uses of the property 
within the PUD Ordinance. Staff has coordinated with the applicant to ensure that the 
development of the property will be consistent with the surrounding residential communites both 
in the scale and size of the building as well as the open space standards and impervious surface 
ratio criteria.  
 
The proposed rezoning from R-1 to PUD is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and 
the City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances.  Staff recommends approval of the proposed 
Ordinance to rezone the subject property from R-1 to PUD subject to the conditions in Ordinance 
15-55.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SonataWest Orange Campus Assisted Living PUD 
420 Roper Road (7.15 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 July 6, 2015 

Page 4 
 

 
 

 
 
MAPS 
  

AERIAL PHOTO 
420 Roper Road 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SonataWest Orange Campus Assisted Living PUD 
420 Roper Road (7.15 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 July 6, 2015 

Page 5 
 

 
 

 
 
 

ZONING MAP 
420 Roper Road 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Property 
Rezoned from R-1 

to PUD 



SonataWest Orange Campus Assisted Living PUD 
420 Roper Road (7.15 ± acres) 

Rezoning - Staff Report 
 July 6, 2015 

Page 6 
 

 
 

 
 

FUTURE LAND USE  MAP 
720 Roper Road 

 

 
 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 

Subject Property 
Existing Future Land Use:  

LR- Low Density Residential 



ORDINANCE 15-55 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, 
FLORIDA, REZONING APPROXIMATELY 7.15 ± ACRES OF 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED ON 
THE NORTH SIDE OF ROPER ROAD, EAST OF WINTER 
GARDEN VINELAND ROAD AND WEST OF DANIELS 
ROAD, FROM CITY R-1 TO CITY PUD; PROVIDING FOR 
CERTAIN PUD REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
(Serenades By Sonata PUD) 

 
 WHEREAS, the owner(s) of real property generally described as approximately 
7.15 ± acres of certain real property generally located on the north side of Roper Road, 
east of Winter Garden Vineland Road and west of Daniels Road in Winter Garden, 
Florida, being more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference (the “Property”), desire to rezone their property from City R-1 to 
City PUD, and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, the 
City Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the adoption 
of this Ordinance and the proposed development of the Property is consistent with the 
City of Winter Garden Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Winter Garden Code of 
Ordinances, therefore; 

  
 BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:  
 
 
 SECTION 1: Rezoning.  After due notice and public hearing, the zoning 
classification of the Property, as described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, is hereby 
rezoned from City R-1 to City PUD in the City of Winter Garden, Florida subject to the 
following conditions, provisions and restrictions: 
 

a. Conceptual Plan- All development on the Property must substantially 
conform to the requirements identified in the Sonata West Orange Campus 
PUD Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B.” Should any conflict be found 
between this Ordinance and the Sonata West Orange Campus PUD Plan 
attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, then the standards and conditions 
established by this Ordinance shall control.  
 

b. Zoning- Due to the nature of the permitted uses set forth in this Ordinance, 
the following sections of Article V, Division 2 of the City Code of Ordinances 
regarding Residential Planned Unit Developments shall not apply to the 
Property: section 118-860, section 118-921, section 118-923, section 118-
925, and section 118-927. Unless specifically noted elsewhere in Exhibit “B” 
attached hereto, or expressly provided for herein, all development on the 

 
Ordinance 15-55 

Page 1 of 9 



Property must comply with the general zoning requirements of the 
Residential Planned Unit Development zoning district. These requirements 
include any approval procedure of the Residential Planned Unit 
Development zoning district. 

 
c. Permitted Uses- With respect to the Sonata West Orange PUD Area as 

identified in Exhibit “B” attached hereto, the only permitted use shall be an 
Independent/Assisted Living Facility and an Outdoor Recreation Area. 

 
d.  Prohibited Uses- Unless specifically identified by this Ordinance as a 

permitted use, all other uses are prohibited. 
 
e. Design Criteria/Architectural Standards-  
 

1. Maximum Building Length- Notwithstanding Section 118-925 of 
the City Code of Ordinances, the maximum length of the 
Assisted/Independent Living Facility building in the Sonata West 
Orange Campus PUD Area as identified in Exhibit “B” attached 
hereto shall not exceed 320 feet. 
 

2. Maximum Building Height-  
 

With respect to the Sonata West Orange Campus PUD Area as 
identified in Exhibit “B” attached hereto, maximum building height 
shall not exceed 45 feet (three stories on the northern portion of the 
building), and the remainder of the building shall not exceed two 
stories (35 feet).  
 

3. Outdoor Recreation Area –  
The outdoor recreation area shall be designed to be consistent with 
the architecture of the main building or to complement the 
architecture of the building.  This outdoor area shall consist of a 
pavilion with restrooms, bocce ball courts, a putting green, tables 
and chairs, and a trail around the pond.   
 

4. Signage- All signage proposed for the Property shall conform to the 
requirements and regulations pertaining to specified commercial 
corridors within the City of Winter Garden as defined in Chapter 118, 
Article X, Division 2 of the City of Winter Garden Code of 
Ordinances. One single-tenant ground sign shall be permitted for the 
Sonata West Orange Campus PUD Area as identified in Exhibit “B.” 
 The signage shall be reviewed at time of Site Plan Review.  
  

5. Impervious Surface Area Ratio- The maximum impervious surface 
area ratio for the Property shall not exceed 60% and shall be 
consistent with the overall maximum impervious surface area ratio 

 
Ordinance 15-55 

Page 2 of 9 



that the Planned Unit Development is designated and permitted for 
by Saint John’s River Water Management District. 
 

6. Common Open Space-  
 

The minimum common open space provided for the Property shall 
be 20%. For the purposes of this Ordinance the area identified as 
“Courtyard” on Exhibit “B” and some retention areas may be 
considered as contribution toward fulfillment of open space 
requirements.  
 
Specifically, dry retention may contribute to the fulfillment of the 
common open space requirement, and wet bottom retention areas 
may partially contribute to fulfilling open space requirements. 
Additionally, pervious surfaces, unless specifically identified below, 
may be calculated as common open space for the Property; however 
the following will not be considered as contributing to the common 
open space requirement for the Property: 

 
• Any impervious surface as defined in  

Chapter 106 of the City Code of Ordinances. 
• Parking Areas 
• Road rights-of-way 
• Required minimum yards & building spacing  

 
7. Dark Skies- all exterior lighting shall be designed to provide safe, 

convenient and efficient lighting for pedestrians and vehicles. 
Exterior lighting shall be designed as dark skies lighting in a 
consistent and coordinated manner for the entire project in 
compliance with the requirements of Chapter 118, Article X, Division 
4 of the City Code of Ordinances. 

 
f. Delivery Hours- No deliveries shall occur between the hours of 7:00pm 

and 7:00am. 
 

g. Staff Conditions- All development on the Property must comply with the 
following staff conditions: 

 
1. An engineered site plan meeting all requirements of the City Code of 

Ordinances shall be submitted for review and approval by City staff 
and City Commission prior to commencement of any construction. 
 

2. All utilities required for the development shall be run to the site at 
the developer’s expense, including potable water, reclaimed water 
and sanitary sewer.  100% of all water and sewer impact fees shall 
be paid prior to City execution of FDEP permits and issuance of 

 
Ordinance 15-55 

Page 3 of 9 



site or building permits. 
 

3. All irrigation on the site shall be designed to be supplied by 
reclaimed water.  An exception may be granted for the enclosed 
courtyards to use potable water and will be considered at final site 
plan review. 

 
4. The survey indicates that a portion of the site is jurisdictional 

wetlands.  All wetlands shall be shown and addressed at the time 
of site plan submittal and if approved for removal shall be mitigated 
with the jurisdictional agencies.  Terracon Karst report is 
acknowledged.  

 
5. Permits from SJRWMD and FDEP (water, wastewater and NPDES) 

are required prior to issuance of site or building permits. 
 

6. Landscaping, fencing, signage, etc. shall not infringe on sight 
distance requirements at any intersection, including Daniels Road 
or Roper Road. 
 

7. The impact fees will be reviewed with the Site Plan application to 
determine if an alternative impact fee study will be accepted for the 
Assisted Living Facility.  If an alternative impact fee is accepted, two 
(2) years after the issuance of the certificate of occupancy for and 
commencing operation of the Sonata West Orange Campus 
(Assisted Living Facility), the City shall have the right to review traffic 
count data for such facility to determine if the alternative impact fee 
study correctly measured the impact of the facility.  If the review of 
such traffic count data shows that the alternative impact fee study 
under estimated the impact of the facility on the public roads and 
transportation system, the City shall have the right to require the 
Owner to make an additional true-up payment of Road Impact Fees 
to compensate for the impact. All other impact fees shall be paid 
when required by the City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and 
in the amounts required at the then applicable impact fees rates. 

 
8. This development is required to pay their share of the cost of the 

traffic light that was installed at the corner of Roper Drive and 
Daniels Road.  The appropriate amount will be determined through 
the studies submitted with the Site Plan Review and the fair share 
shall be paid prior to permits being issued. 

 
9. The Owner is responsible for meeting all provisions of ADA and 

Florida Accessibility Code. 
 

 
Ordinance 15-55 

Page 4 of 9 



10. All work shall conform to City of Winter Garden standards and 
specifications. 

 
11. The City of Winter Garden will inspect private site improvements only 

to the extent that they connect to City owned/maintained systems 
(roadways, drainage, utilities, etc.).  It is the responsibility of the 
Owner and Design Engineer to ensure that privately owned and 
maintained systems are constructed to the intended specifications.  
The City is not responsible for the operation and maintenance of 
privately owned systems, to include, but not be limited to, roadways, 
parking lots, drainage, stormwater ponds or on-site utilities. 

 
12. The Contractor is responsible for the notification, location and 

protection of all utilities that may exist within the project limits. 
 
13. No fill or runoff will be allowed to discharge onto adjacent properties; 

existing drainage patterns shall not be altered.    The City of Winter 
Garden is not granting rights or easements for drainage from, or 
onto, property owned by others, including by way of any 
development order or permit issued.  Obtaining permission, 
easements or other approvals that may be required to drain onto 
private property is the Owner/Developer's responsibility.  Should the 
flow of stormwater runoff from, or onto adjacent properties be 
unreasonable or cause problems, the City shall not be responsible 
and any corrective measures required will be the responsibility of the 
Owner/Developer.  Site construction shall adhere to the City of 
Winter Garden erosion and sediment control requirements as 
contained in Chapter 106 - Stormwater.  If approval is granted by the 
City of Winter Garden, it does not waive any permits that may be 
required by federal, state, regional, county, municipal or other 
agencies that may have jurisdiction. 

 
14. After final plan approval, a preconstruction meeting will be required 

prior to any commencement of construction. The applicant shall 
provide an erosion control and street lighting plan at the 
preconstruction meeting and shall pay all engineering review and 
inspection fees prior to construction.  Inspection fees in the amount 
of 2.25% of the cost of all site improvements shall be paid prior to 
issuance of the building permit. 

 
 

 SECTION 2: General Requirements. 
 

a. Development Agreement- A Development Agreement shall be drafted, 
approval obtained and recorded prior to approval of any site or building 
permits for the Property. The Development Agreement shall address 

 
Ordinance 15-55 

Page 5 of 9 



matters to include, but not limited to, project phasing, right-of-way 
improvement and conveyance, easements, vehicular access to the site 
including possible connection to the proposed Roper Road Extension, 
restriction of additional curb-cuts, provision for cross access, design 
standards, signage, impact fees, stormwater, drainage, utilities and other 
off-site public infrastructure improvements. 
 

b. Stand Alone Clause- Each phase of development of the Property must 
operate as an individual unit in that each particular phase will be able to 
stand-alone in the event that no other phase is developed. 

 
c. Land Development Approvals and Permits- This Ordinance does not 

require the City to issue any permit or approval for development, 
construction, building permit, or other matter by the City relating to the 
Property or the project or any portion thereof. These and any other required 
City development approvals and permits shall be processed and issued by 
the City in accordance with procedures set forth in the City’s Code of 
Ordinances and subject to this Ordinance.  

 
d. Amendments- Minor amendments to this Ordinance will be achieved by 

Resolution of the City Commission of the City of Winter Garden. Major 
amendments to this Ordinance will require approval of the City Commission 
of the City of Winter Garden by Ordinance. 

 
e. Expiration/Extension- Expiration of this PUD shall be governed in 

accordance with Section 118-830, City of Winter Garden Code of 
Ordinances. Time extensions may be granted in accordance with Section 
118-829, City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances. 

 
 
 SECTION 3: Zoning Map.  The City Planner is hereby authorized and directed to 
amend the Official Winter Garden Zoning Map in accordance with the provisions of this 
ordinance. 
 
 
 SECTION 4: Non-Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance be held 
invalid, then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void. 
 
 
 SECTION 5: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon 
adoption at its second reading. 
  
FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  , 2015. 
 
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING:  

 
, 2015. 

 

 
Ordinance 15-55 

Page 6 of 9 



ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2015, by the City Commission of the 
City of Winter Garden, Florida. 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JOHN REES, Mayor/Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Ordinance 15-55 

Page 7 of 9 



Exhibit “A” 
 

 
 

 
 

AND 
 

 
Ordinance 15-55 

Page 8 of 9 



 
Exhibit “B” 

 

COVER PAGE 
 
 

SONATA WEST ORANGE CAMPUS 
PUD 

 
JULY 2015 

 
(9 PAGES - ATTACHED)  

 
Ordinance 15-55 

Page 9 of 9 







©COPYRIGHT  three 2015

SEAL :

SHEET NUMBER :

PHASE:

OWNER :

Digital File:

PROJECT NO. :

DATE :

14013

214.559.0990
facsimile

214.559.4080
telephone

Dallas, Texas
75204

4040 N. Central Expwy
suite 200

three

April 27, 2015

SHEET DESCRIPTION :

X
:\

ca
dd

PC
\1

50
04

.0
0_

So
na

ta
W

es
tO

ra
ng

eS
er

en
ad

es
IL

-A
L\

PD
-L

A
N

D
SC

A
PE

 P
LA

N
-0

6-
17

-2
01

5\
15

00
4-

TA
-D

ES
IG

N
BA

SE
.d

w
g 

   
-  

   
Ju

ne
 1

6,
 2

01
5 

at
 4

:1
6p

m
   

 - 
   

de
do

n

Se
re

na
de

s 
By

 S
on

at
a 

P.
U

.D
.

42
0 

Ro
p

er
 R

oa
d

W
in

te
r 

G
ar

de
n,

 F
L 

 3
47

87

living architecture
design that lifts the human spirit

SONATA SENIOR LIVING

Revision Description Date

PD LANDSCAPE PLANTING PLAN

1        City Comments    6/17/15

1

1



©COPYRIGHT  three 2015

SEAL :

SHEET NUMBER :

PHASE:

OWNER :

Digital File:

PROJECT NO. :

DATE :

14013

214.559.0990
facsimile

214.559.4080
telephone

Dallas, Texas
75204

4040 N. Central Expwy
suite 200

three

April 27, 2015

SHEET DESCRIPTION :

X
:\

ca
dd

PC
\1

50
04

.0
0_

So
na

ta
W

es
tO

ra
ng

eS
er

en
ad

es
IL

-A
L\

0.
1 

Sc
he

m
at

ic
 D

es
ig

n\
15

00
4-

TA
-D

ES
IG

N
BA

SE
.d

w
g 

   
-  

   
A

p
ril

 2
7,

 2
01

5 
at

 4
:4

3p
m

   
 - 

   
de

do
n

Se
re

na
de

s 
By

 S
on

at
a 

P.
U

.D
.

42
0 

Ro
p

er
 R

oa
d

W
in

te
r 

G
ar

de
n,

 F
L 

 3
47

87

living architecture
design that lifts the human spirit

SONATA SENIOR LIVING

PD LANDSCAPE PLANTING
SCHEDULE, NOTES AND

DETAILS













THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM #  5 
 

DATE:  July 1, 2015 MEETING DATE: July 6, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 1205 E Fullers Cross Road (PRELIMINARY PLAT) 
 PROJECT NAME Oak Trail Subdivision 
 PARCEL ID# 12-22-27-0000-00-005, 12-22-27-0000-00-074 
  
ISSUE: The applicant is requesting approval of a Preliminary Plat for 25 single 

family residential units in the Oak Trail Subdivision. 
  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Gilkey FX, LLC  
  
CURRENT ZONING: R-1B (Single Family Residential District) 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: LR (Low Density Residential) 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
SUMMARY: 
 Applicant proposes a Preliminary Plat for 25 single family 

residential units within the 11.1 +/- acre subject property.  The 
proposed Preliminary Plat is consistent with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan and the City of Winter Garden Code of 
Ordinances.  The proposed Preliminary Plat is consistent with the 
regulations of the property’s R-1B zoning district.  

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 City staff recommends conditional approval of the Preliminary Plat 

of 25 single family residential units in the Oak Trail Subdivision. 
Conditional approval will allow the owner to proceed with 
development plans as well as the final plat. Conditional approval of 
the proposed Preliminary Plat is subject to conditions of all prior 
development approvals, including the Developer’s Agreement.  

  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Submit Subdivision Construction Plans and Final Plat. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 Preliminary Plat 
 



LOCATION MAP 

1205 E FULLERS CROSS ROAD 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 

 

 



 

CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:   PLANNING AND ZONING COMMITTEE 
PREPARED BY:   KELLY CARSON, PLANNER II 
DATE:   JUNE 29, 2015 
SUBJECT:   PRELIMINARY PLAT 
   OAK TRAIL SUBDIVISION 
   1205 E FULLERS CROSS ROAD (11.1 +/- ACRES) 
    PARCEL ID #   12-22-27-0000-00-005, 12-22-27-0000-00-074 
        
APPLICANT:  GILKEY FX, LLC 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the proposed preliminary plat for compliance with the 
City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
The subject property is located at 1205 E Fullers Cross Road and is approximately 11.1± acres. 
The map below depicts the location of the subject property within the City of Winter Garden 
municipal limits. 

 



Oak Trail Subdivision 
E Fullers Cross Rd (11.1 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
June 29, 2015 

Page 2 

 

 
EXISTING USE 
The subject property currently contains one house, one manufactured home, and the remainder is 
wooded vacant land. Also, located within the northeastern portion of the property is a small 
wetland area, which appears to have been a historic ditch, dug from the offsite wetlands to the 
north that drained offsite to the southeast. 
The property was annexed into the City in 2015, was rezoned to City R-1B, and was given a 
future land use designation in the City’s Comprehensive Plan of Low Density Residential.  
 

ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The property located to the north is developed with the Fullers Crossing single family 
neighborhood, zoned PUD, and located in Winter Garden. The property located to the east is 6 
+/- acre property developed with a single family house, zoned R-1, and located in Winter 
Garden. The property to the south is developed with the Tuscany single family neighborhood, 
zoned R-1, and located in Winter Garden.  The property to the west is 2.5 +/- acre property 
developed with a single family house and a citrus grove, zoned A-2, and located in Orange 
County. 
 

PROPOSED USE 
The applicant is requesting preliminary plat approval to move forward with development plans 
and the final plat. The applicant is proposing to develop the 11.1 ± acre, site into a residential 
subdivision containing 25 single-family dwelling units. The minimum lot size will be 75’ x 100’, 
which complies with the regulations of the property’s R1-B zoning. The subdivision will have a 
gross density of 2.25 dwelling units per acre; the LR- Low Density Residential Future Land Use 
Designation allows up to 6 dwelling units per acre. The subdivision will contain 0.46 acres of 
combined recreation areas that will include amenities such as benches, bicycle racks, warm-up 
stations, picnic tables, a dog walk area, wetland viewing areas, and open spaces.  
A Developer’s Agreement between the applicant and the City, which was approved by City 
Commission in 2015, included a section requiring the developer to pay the subdivision’s fair 
share costs of the proposed traffic signal that will be constructed at the intersection of Fullers 
Cross Road and East Crown Point Road. 
 

SUMMARY 
City Staff recommends conditional approval of the Preliminary Plat subject to the following 
condition(s): 

• The environmental report states on page 4 that the Wetland “ditch” drains from the 
northeast portion of the site to the southeast.  Based on the USGS Quad map included in 
the report and the topo survey provided with the preliminary plat, this ditch drains from the 
southeast to the north and northwest and apparently is a drainage outfall for Fullers Cross 
Road.  As stated in the Applicant’s response, the flow shall be maintained where this 
outfall is within the project boundary, including a drainage easement. 

• Based on the environmental report, the on-site soils are for the most part poorly drained 
with a high seasonal groundwater level.  Provide geotechnical report in next submittal to 
further define the on-site soils and groundwater table.  Underdrains will be required if the 
seasonal high groundwater table is within 18” of the base.  Previous response states that 



Oak Trail Subdivision 
E Fullers Cross Rd (11.1 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
June 29, 2015 

Page 3 

 

geotechnical report will be submitted with final construction plans – this will be at the 
Developer’s sole risk and the City will not be responsible should the geotechnical report 
require a reduction in lots, alignment, etc. at final construction plan review.  

• Sheet C-02 (topo):  West Orange Trail R/W is owned by the City of Winter Garden with an 
easement to Orange County for the Trail.  Orange County Parks & Rec shall review and 
approve the sidewalk connection to the Trail, prior to construction.  Additional details shall 
be provided on the final construction plans to prevent vehicular access to the Trail (as 
stated, bollards, etc.). 

• A Tree Removal Permit issued by the City of Winter Garden Building Department will be 
required prior to final plan approval. Tree plan needs to show which trees are to be 
removed and which will be saved. 

• Typical Section:  Right-of-way width shall be a minimum of 50 feet with minimum 
roadway pavement width of 24’ as required by City Code (12’ minimum each lane); 16’ 
minimum lane width for any divided portion (additional width may be required if parking 
is allowed); 18” of clean fill with no more than 5% passing a #200 sieve required under the 
subbase; 98% density required on all compaction; 2” minimum asphalt thickness; 10” 
minimum soil cement or crushed concrete base thickness; minimum 24” wide concrete 
curb and gutter required (or Miami curb); 5’ wide concrete sidewalks required on both 
sides of street (3,000 psi minimum); minimum 10’ wide drainage, utility and sidewalk 
easements required adjacent to all rights-of-way.  All construction shall meet City of 
Winter Garden requirements for drainage, roadways and utilities (see City Standard Details 
available on-line at cwgdn.com).  

• The curb and closed drainage on Fullers Cross Road shall be extended to the east of the 
existing curb inlets to the 48” cross drain that discharges into the outfall ditch.  Provide end 
treatment at the cross drain (i.e. inlet, spillway, etc.) with final construction plans. 

• Walls and landscaping shall be located within a landscape and wall tract as shown, to be 
maintained by the HOA.  Wall and landscape tract shall be outside of the existing R/W as 
shown.  

• Sheet C-06:  The rear lot drainage systems (swale, inlets & piping) and easement on Lots 9 
– 12 and Lots 16 – 20 shall be maintained by the HOA.  Final storm pipe layout will be 
subject to final construction plan review and may be revised to prevent encroachment into 
lots if maintenance is required (at Lots 9/10 & Lot 25). 

• Previous response indicates the project will not be gated.  While portions of the right-of-
way may be dedicated to the City, maintenance of special pavements, landscaping, 
hardscaping, irrigation, etc. shall be performed by the HOA under a R/W maintenance 
agreement. 

• All proposed easements shall be 30’ minimum width for sanitary, water and storm; 
improvements shall be centered within the easement.  Common areas not abutting right-of-
way shall include a minimum 20’ wide tract (not easement) for access and maintenance. 

• The 20’ wide drainage easement between Lots 15-16 may need to be wider depending on 
final pipe size and depth. 

• Sheet C-07:  Utilities:  Minimum 8” potable water (internal), 8” reuse water, and minimum 
6” sanitary force main are required.  Utilities shall be extended the full property frontage 
per Code (6” force main).  Per DRC discussion, Public Services has preliminarily accepted 



Oak Trail Subdivision 
E Fullers Cross Rd (11.1 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
June 29, 2015 

Page 4 

 

the 4” force main and 6” reuse main, subject to the Applicant providing hydraulic 
calculations supporting those line sizes. 

• Minimum 5 ft. wide utility and drainage easements shall be provided on each side lot line; 
10’ drainage, utility and sidewalk easements required adjacent to R/W. 

• Streetlighting shall be pursuant to City Code, including frontage on Fullers Cross Road, 
meeting dark skies requirements (Code Section 118-1536(k)).  Submit streetlighting plan 
from Duke Energy prior to preconstruction meeting. 

• All irrigation on the site shall be designed to be supplied by reclaimed water.  
• Permits from SJRWMD and FDEP (water, wastewater and NPDES) are required prior to 

issuance of site or building permits.  
• Sidewalks internal to the development shall be constructed adjacent to all lands not 

containing building lots prior to final acceptance.  This shall include all retention, 
conservation, lift station, or recreation tracts, abutting roadways, pedestrian walkways, etc.  
Sidewalks external to the development shall be constructed upon final completion.   

• Please see note number 15 under the Wastewater System Notes on City Detail Sheet #1.  
This is the requirement for the elevation separation between the finished floor and the wet 
well top.  As a general rule of thumb, one does not establish the top elevation of the wet 
well below the base flood elevation; therefore, this places the finished floor at least one 
foot above both the wet well top and the base flood elevation.  If the top of the wet well is 
higher than the base flood then position the finished floors one foot above the top of the 
wet well.  This condition will be verified during the construction plan review. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Oak Trail Subdivision 
E Fullers Cross Rd (11.1 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
June 29, 2015 

Page 5 

 

 
 
  

 
AERIAL PHOTO 

OAK TRAIL SUBDIVISION 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Oak Trail Subdivision 
E Fullers Cross Rd (11.1 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
June 29, 2015 

Page 6 

 

 
 
 

 
ZONING MAP 

OAK TRAIL SUBDIVISION 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Oak Trail Subdivision 
E Fullers Cross Rd (11.1 ± acres) 

Pre-Plat - Staff Report 
June 29, 2015 

Page 7 

 

 
 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
OAK TRAIL SUBDIVISION 

 

 
 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 



LAKE APOPKA

SITE

OAK TRAIL

PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLANS
FOR

NOVEMBER 14, 2014

OWNER/DEVELOPER

CIVIL ENGINEER

SURVEYOR

SANITARY SEWER:

POTABLE WATER:

GARBAGE COLLECTION:

PHONE:

ELECTRIC:

PROJECT CONTACTS:

UTILITY CONTACTS:

TRAFFIC ENGINEER

GENERAL LOCATION MAP

SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION

LIST OF DRAWINGS

RE-USE WATER:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

A PORTION OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTH 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST BEING MARKED BY A 4"x4" CONCRETE MONUMENT
"NO ID" C.C.R. #066512 RUN N89°42'06"E ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION, 1310.50 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF SAID NORTH LINE AND THE
EAST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 12; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH LINE RUN S00°11'45"W ALONG SAID
EAST LINE, 540.94 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF SAID EAST LINE AND THE EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF RAILS TO TRAILS/APOPKA TO MABEL
PROJECT OF THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY MAPS PREPARED BY JONES, WOOD & GENTRY; THENCE CONTINUE
ALONG SAID EAST LINE AND EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE S00°11'45"W, 7.12 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE DEPARTING SAID EASTERLY
RIGHT OF WAY LINE CONTINUE S00°11'45"W ALONG SAID EAST LINE, 1097.46 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF SAID EAST LINE AND THE NORTH RIGHT OF
WAY LINE OF FULLERS CROSS ROAD PER ORANGE COUNTY ROAD BOND BOOK 1 PROJECT 5; THENCE DEPARTING SAID EAST LINE RUN N89°43'54"W
ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE, 614.58 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE RUN N00°00'00"E, 474.88 FEET TO THE
AFOREMENTIONED EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF THE RAILS TO TRAILS/APOPKA TO MABEL PROJECT; THENCE RUN N44°56'12"E ALONG SAID
EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE, 875.41 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL OF LAND CONTAINS 11.1 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

NOTES:

1. MINIMUM 5' SIDE LOT UTILITY & DRAINAGE EASEMENTS ARE REQUIRED.

2. MINIMUM 10' FRONT LOT UTILITY, DRAINAGE & SIDEWALK EASEMENTS

ARE REQUIRED.

3. ALL WATER AND REUSE LINES ARE TO BE INSTALLED UNDER THE

SIDEWALK.

Revised: MAY 14, 2015



X

X

X

X



OAK TRAIL
SUBDIVISION



OAK TRAIL
SUBDIVISION

SITE DATA:

SETBACKS:

            TRACT H

 10' WALL/LANDSCAPE

     0.09 ac. (4,000 s.f.)

LEGEND:

Z

O

N

I

N

G

:

 

P

U

D

ZONING: R-1

NUMBER OF LOTS: 25

MIN. LOT SIZE: 75' X 100'

MIN. OPEN SPACE: 20%

PROPOSED ZONING :R-1B

FUTURE LAND USE: LR-LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

FRONT YARD = 25'

SIDE YARD: = 10'

REAR YARD= 25'

CORNER SIDE LOT = 20'

TRACT C

DETENTION/RETENTION

POND

1.19 AC (51,827 s.f.)

TRACT A

OPEN SPACE/PARK

0.35 AC. (15,360 s.f.)

NOTES:

1. MINIMUM 5' SIDE LOT UTILITY & DRAINAGE EASEMENTS ARE REQUIRED.

2. MINIMUM 10' FRONT LOT UTILITY, DRAINAGE & SIDEWALK EASEMENTS

ARE REQUIRED.

3. ALL WATER AND REUSE LINES ARE TO BE INSTALLED UNDER THE

SIDEWALK.

4. ALL LOT BUILDING PADS ARE 60' x 72' EXCEPT LOT 15 IS 60' X 65'.

20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

2
5
' 
W

E

T

L
A

N

D

 
B

U

F

F

E

R

5' SIDE YARD

DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

(TYP.)

STREET "A"

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
"
B

"

TRACT F

LIFT STATION

0.10 ac. (4,4,51 s.f.)

        TRACT E

PARK

     0.11 ac. (4,637 s.f.)

LOT 13

LANDSCAPE

EASEMENT

3
0

'
2

0
'

TRACT D

DRAINAGE

0.11 ac. (4,618 s.f.)

SECTION B-B

SECTION A-A

TRACT B

WETLAND/BUFFER

0.90 AC. (39,988 s.f.)

10' REAR LOT DRAINAGE/

FENCE EASEMENT, (TYP.)

10' FRONT LOT DRAINAGE

EASEMENT, (TYP.)

           TRACT G

 10' WALL/LANDSCAPE

     0.03 ac. (1,235 s.f.)

10' REAR LOT DRAINAGE/

FENCE EASEMENT, (TYP.)

WETLAND BOUNDARY

25' WETLAND

BUFFER

DETAIL "A"

SIGN/DRAINAGE

EASEMENT (TYP.)

SIGN

2

5

'

 

W

E

T

L

A

N

D

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

           SEE DETAIL "A"

10' DRAINAGE/

SIGN EASEMENT

10' DRAINAGE/

SIGN/LANDSCAPE

EASEMENT (TYP.)



OAK TRAIL
SUBDIVISION

PROPOSED PRE-CAST 

WALL LOCATION

PROPOSED PRE-CAST 

WALL LOCAITON

FULLERS CROSS ROAD

CROSS-SECTION A-A

ENLARGEMENT A-A

SEE ENLARGEMENT

THIS SHEET

10' LANDSCAPE

TRACT H

10' LANDSCAPE

TRACT G

WALL TRACT

WALL TRACT

NOTE: PRECAST WALL DESIGN BY OTHERS.

ENTRANCE

PROPOSED

SIGN

EASEMENT

SIGN/DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

SIGN/DRAINAGE



OAK TRAIL
SUBDIVISION



OAK TRAIL
SUBDIVISION



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 6 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  July 1, 2015 MEETING DATE: July 6, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 16303 Marsh Road (VARIANCE) 
 PROJECT NAME TwinWaters Subdivision Entry Sign Walls 
 PARCEL ID# 05-23-27-0000-00-005, 05-23-27-0000-00-008 
  
ISSUE: The applicants are requesting a Variance to the maximum permitted 

height of subdivision walls and residential signs to allow the construction 
of sign walls at the two entrances of the TwinWaters residential 
subdivision located at 16303 Marsh Road. 

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Meritage Homes of Florida, Inc.  
  
CURRENT ZONING: UVPUD Urban Village Planned Unit Development 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: VIL Urban Village 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 The applicant is requesting a Variance to allow 8’ tall subdivision 

sign walls in lieu of the maximum allowed 6’ tall subdivision sign 
walls. If approved, this variance will allow two 8’ tall subdivision 
sign walls to be constructed at the entrances of the TwinWaters 
residential subdivision (one 8’ tall sign wall per entrance). 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of the variance request. 
  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Apply for building permits. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 



LOCATION MAP 

16303 Marsh Road 

VARIANCE 

 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:  KELLY CARSON, PLANNER II 
DATE:  JULY 1, 2015 
SUBJECT:  VARIANCE 
   16303 Marsh Road – TwinWaters Subdivision (77.33 +/- ACRES) 
   PARCEL ID # 05-23-27-0000-00-005, 05-23-27-0000-00-008 
      
APPLICANT:  Meritage Homes of Florida, Inc.  
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the request for a sign wall height variance for property 
located at 16303 Marsh Road in Winter Garden, Florida. The request is for a 2’ variance to allow 
8’ tall subdivision sign walls in lieu of the maximum allowed 6’ tall subdivision sign walls. If 
approved, this variance will allow two 8’ tall subdivision sign walls to be constructed at the 
entrances of the TwinWaters residential subdivision (one 8’ tall sign wall per entrance). 
The subject property, located on Marsh Road, consists of two lots with a combined area of 
approximately 77.33 ± unplatted acres. The applicant is currently going through the final platting 
process to plat the subdivision with 140 single family residential lots. The map below depicts the 
location of the subject property within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits: 

 



16303 Marsh Road – 77.33 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 2 

The subject property carries the zoning designation UVPUD (Urban Village Planned Unit 
Development) and is designated VIL (Urban Village) on the Future Land Use Map of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
EXISTING USE 
The subject property consists of land that was formerly used for agriculture (timberland). 
Currently, infrastructure for the TwinWaters subdivision is being installed on site. The property 
contains a jurisdictional wetland, a karst feature/wetland, and a portion of Johns Lake.   
 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The subject property is bordered on the north side by John’s Lake. The property located to the 
east of the subject property is the Hickory Hammock residential subdivision currently under site 
construction, which is zoned PUD in the City of Winter Garden. The property located to the west 
of the subject property on the north side of Marsh Road is the Waterside at John’s Lake 
residential subdivision currently under site construction and is zoned UVPUD in the City of 
Winter Garden. The property located to the south and west of the subject property on the south 
side of Marsh Road is vacant unimproved land presently used for agriculture (timberland & 
citrus grove). This property is in the City of Winter Garden and is not currently zoned.  
 
PROPOSED USE 
The applicant is proposing to construct a total of two new sign walls that will each be a 
maximum of 8’ tall: one at the entrance on the north side of Marsh Road that will include a water 
feature and one at the secondary entrance on the south side of Marsh Road.  
 
CODE REFERENCES 
Sec. 118-1297(i) of the City Code of Ordinances addresses maximum height for subdivision 
walls and/or buffers. This section states that all screen walls built adjacent to a public rights-of-
way are limited to 6’ in height: Height of the screen wall shall be six feet from the finished grade 
of the location of the wall. 
 
 

The applicant is seeking a variance to allow 8’ tall subdivision sign walls, which exceed the 
maximum permitted subdivision wall height by 2’.  
 
Sec. 102-126(a) of the City Code of Ordinances addresses standards for permanent on-premise 
signs in the residential and planned unit development districts. This section states that all 
residential and PUD subdivision signs are permitted to be a maximum of 6’ tall: Table 1: Signs 
in Residential Districts: Residential and PUD Subdivisions, Apartments and Condominium 
Complexes, Multi-Family Dwellings: Maximum Height: 6’0. 
 
 

The applicant is seeking a variance to allow 8’ tall subdivision sign walls, which exceed the 
maximum permitted subdivision sign height by 2’.  
 
 
CODE REQUIREMENTS / CRITERIA 
Section 118-131 of the City Code that relates to the review criteria states that, “A variance may 
be granted from land development regulations by the planning and zoning board if the planning 



16303 Marsh Road – 77.33 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 3 

and zoning board concludes that literal enforcement of the provisions of land development 
regulations would result in either practical difficulties (for setback and parking provisions) or 
unnecessary hardships (for all other land development regulations) for the property at issue.”  
The code also lists the following criteria that are to be addressed before a variance can be 
approved. Underlined text is Staff’s comments concerning this particular petition. 
 
(1) Granting the variance will not cause or allow interference with the reasonable enjoyment of 

adjacent or nearby property owners or negatively impact the standard of living of the citizens 
of the city; 
The proposed 8’ tall sign walls to be constructed at the two entrances of the TwinWaters 
Subdivision should not negatively impact or interfere with the reasonable enjoyment of 
adjacent or nearby property owners. In addition, this project will not negatively impact the 
standard of living of the citizens of the City.  

 
(2) The variance will allow a reasonable use of the property, which use is not out of character 

with other properties in the same zoning category; 
The requested variance allowing 8’ tall subdivision sign walls to be constructed at the two 
entrances to the TwinWaters Subdivision will allow reasonable use of the property. There are 
many subdivisions throughout the City of Winter Garden that feature entry sign walls that 
exceed 6’ in height. The subdivision to the east of the Subject Property, Hickory Hammock, 
features several entry sign monuments that are more than 15’ in height. The subdivision signs 
are situated at a height of 8’ on these aforementioned monuments. Furthermore, granting this 
variance will not change the Urban Village character of the district.    

 
(3) In the context presented, strict compliance with the land development regulation will not 

further any legitimate city objective or the benefits that would be achieved under the other 
variance criteria by the granting of the variance outweigh the benefits under this criteria if 
the variance were denied; 
Strict compliance with the City’s land development regulations will not further any 
legitimate City objective.  This request does not encroach into any recorded easements, does 
not exceed the maximum permitted subdivision sign copy area, does not exceed the number 
of subdivision signs allowed, and meets all other development regulations of the Winter 
Garden Code of Ordinances.  

 
(4) The granting of the variance is consistent with the city's comprehensive plan; and 

The variance is consistent with the provisions of the City’s Comprehensive Plan relating to 
urban village neighborhood character. 

 
(5) The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make reasonable use of the land, 

building, or structure or the benefits that would be achieved under the other variance criteria 
by the granting of the variance outweigh the benefits under these criteria if the variance were 
denied. 
The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make reasonable use of the land.  
The proposed 8’ tall subdivision sign walls will not negatively impact the neighbors and are 
consistent with sign wall heights found at the entrances of many other subdivisions 
throughout the City. Denying this variance does not benefit the property owner or the City. 

 
 
 

 



16303 Marsh Road – 77.33 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 4 

SUMMARY 
City Staff recommends approval of a variance to Sections 118-1297(i) and 102-126(a) to allow 
the construction of 8’ tall subdivision sign walls to be built at the two entrances of the 
TwinWaters residential subdivision. 
 
NEXT STEP  
Obtain building permits while following all City of Winter Garden development regulations.  

 
ATTACHMENTS  

- Aerial Photo 
- Proposed Entry Site Plan 
- Proposed Entry Elevations 
- Site Photos 
- Photo of Hickory Hammock’s Entry Features 

 



16303 Marsh Road – 77.33 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 5 

 
 

AERIAL PHOTO 
16303 Marsh Road 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



16303 Marsh Road – 77.33 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 6 

PROPOSED ENTRY SITE PLAN 
16303 Marsh Road 

 

 



16303 Marsh Road – 77.33 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 7 

 
PROPOSED ENTRY ELEVATIONS 

16303 Marsh Road 
 

 



16303 Marsh Road – 77.33 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 8 

 
SITE PHOTOS 

16303 Marsh Road 
 

 
 

 



16303 Marsh Road – 77.33 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 9 

 
 

PHOTO OF HICKORY HAMMOCK’S ENTRY FEATURES 
 

 
 
 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 7 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  July 1, 2015 MEETING DATE: July 6, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 12902 Roper Road (VARIANCE) 
 PROJECT NAME Canopy Oaks Subdivision Entry Features 
 PARCEL ID# 36-22-27-0000-00-012 
  
ISSUE: The applicants are requesting a Variance to the maximum permitted 

height of subdivision walls, regulations for residential signs, and required 
side setbacks to allow the construction of sign walls, gates, and a 
pedestrian pavilion feature at the entrance of the Canopy Oaks residential 
subdivision located at 12902 Roper Road. 

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Sift Oaks Investments, LLC 
  
CURRENT ZONING: R-1B Single Family Residential District 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: LR Low Density Residential 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 
 The applicant is requesting a Variance to allow the construction of 

several entry features including sign walls, gates, and a pedestrian 
pavilion feature at the entrance of the Canopy Oaks residential 
subdivision. If approved, the variance would permit the 
construction of two 10’-8” sign walls with 52 square feet of sign 
area in lieu of the maximum allowed 6’ tall subdivision wall with a 
maximum allowed 32 square feet of sign area. The variance would 
also allow the installation of two 11’-2” tall entry gates in lieu of the 
maximum allowed 6’ tall gate. Additionally, the variance would 
permit the construction of a pavilion structure located 
approximately 1’ from the side property line of the subdivision tract 
in lieu of the required 10’ side setback. 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of the variance request. 
  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Apply for building permits. 
  



ATTACHMENT(S):  
 Location Map 
 Staff Report 
 



LOCATION MAP 

12902 Roper Road 

VARIANCE 

 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34787-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:  KELLY CARSON, PLANNER II 
DATE:  JULY 1, 2015 
SUBJECT:  VARIANCE 
   12902 Roper Road – Canopy Oaks Subdivision (6.30 +/- ACRES) 
   PARCEL ID #  36-22-27-0000-00-012 
      
APPLICANT:  Sift Oaks Investments, LLC 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the request for a variance for property located at 12902 
Roper Road in Winter Garden, Florida. The request is for a variance to allow the construction of 
several entry features including sign walls, gates, and a pedestrian pavilion feature at the 
entrance of the Canopy Oaks residential subdivision. If approved, the variance would permit the 
construction of two 10’-8” sign walls with 52 square feet of sign area in lieu of the maximum 
allowed 6’ tall subdivision wall with a maximum allowed 32 square feet of sign area. The 
variance would also allow the installation of two 11’-2” tall entry gates in lieu of the maximum 
allowed 6’ tall gate. Additionally, the variance would permit the construction of a pavilion 
structure located approximately 1’ from the side property line of the subdivision tract in lieu of 
the required 10’ side setback. 
The subject property, located on Roper Road, is an approximately 6.30 ± acre lot. The combined 
land area of the subject property and three other adjacent lots will constitute the proposed 
Canopy Oaks Subdivision. The applicant is currently going through the final platting process to 
plat Phase 1 of the subdivision with 49 single family residential lots. The map below depicts the 
location of the subject property within the City of Winter Garden municipal limits: 

 



12902 Roper Road – 6.30 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 2 

The subject property carries the zoning designation R-1B (Single Family Residential District) 
and is designated LR (Low Density Residential) on the Future Land Use Map of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
EXISTING USE 
The subject property had been previously used for agricultural purposes, and was developed with 
a one-story manufactured home, a trailer, five sheds, and a barn. The site has since been cleared 
and infrastructure for the Canopy Oaks subdivision is currently being installed on site.  
 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The subject property is bordered on the east and west by parcels that are part of the larger 
Canopy Oaks subdivision, which are zoned R-1B and located in the City of Winter Garden. The 
property to the south of the subject property contains the Orange County Highway Maintenance 
Department, is zoned A-1, and is located in Unincorporated Orange County. To the north of the 
subject property are residential parcels zoned R-1 and located in Winter Garden.   
 
PROPOSED USE 
The applicant is proposing to construct a total of two new sign walls that will each be a 
maximum of 10’-8” tall, two gates that will be a maximum of 11’-2” tall, and a pedestrian gate 
pavilion structure that will be located approximately 1’-0” from the property line of the proposed 
subdivision tract. The overall Canopy Oaks entry feature design includes a decorative gate/guard 
house (unmanned), low planter walls, wrought iron wall insert details, and landscaping.   
 
CODE REFERENCES 
Sec. 118-1297(i) of the City Code of Ordinances addresses maximum height for subdivision 
walls and/or buffers. This section states that all walls and screens built adjacent to a public 
rights-of-way are limited to 6’ in height: Height of the screen wall shall be six feet from the 
finished grade of the location of the wall. 
 
 

The applicant is seeking a variance to allow the construction of two 10-8” tall subdivision sign 
walls and two 11’-2” tall entry gates, which exceed the maximum permitted subdivision wall & 
buffer height by 4’-8” and 5’-2” respectively.  
 
Sec. 102-126(a) of the City Code of Ordinances addresses standards for permanent on-premise 
signs in the residential and planned unit development districts. This section states that all 
residential and PUD subdivision signs are permitted to be a maximum of 6’ tall and have a 
maximum sign area of 32 sq. ft.: Table 1: Signs in Residential Districts: Residential and PUD 
Subdivisions, Apartments and Condominium Complexes, Multi-Family Dwellings: Maximum 
Height: 6’0; Permitted Sign Area: 32 Square Feet.  
 
 

The applicant is seeking a variance to allow the construction of two 10-8” tall subdivision sign 
walls, which exceed the maximum permitted subdivision sign height by 4’-8’. The applicant is 
also seeking to install a sign with 52 square feet of sign area, which exceeds the maximum 
permitted sign area by 20 square feet. The sign’s actual copy area will meet the code 
requirements. 
 
Sec. 118-352(1) of the City Code of Ordinances addresses minimum yard requirements for 



12902 Roper Road – 6.30 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 3 

structures built on R-1B zoned properties. This section states that in the R-1B residential district, 
the minimum yard requirements are, “Front: 25 feet, Side: ten feet each, Rear: 25 feet.”  
 
 

The applicant is seeking a side yard setback variance in order to allow the construction of a 
pedestrian gate pavilion structure that’s built approximately 1’ from the subdivision tract side 
property line, which exceeds the minimum 10’ side yard setback required by City code.  The 
approximate 1’ setback is to the proposed roofline- the pavilion posts will be set back farther 
(approximately 2.5’).  
 
 
CODE REQUIREMENTS / CRITERIA 
Section 118-131 of the City Code that relates to the review criteria states that, “A variance may 
be granted from land development regulations by the planning and zoning board if the planning 
and zoning board concludes that literal enforcement of the provisions of land development 
regulations would result in either practical difficulties (for setback and parking provisions) or 
unnecessary hardships (for all other land development regulations) for the property at issue.”  
The code also lists the following criteria that are to be addressed before a variance can be 
approved. Underlined text is Staff’s comments concerning this particular petition. 
 
(1) Granting the variance will not cause or allow interference with the reasonable enjoyment of 

adjacent or nearby property owners or negatively impact the standard of living of the citizens 
of the city; 
The proposed entry features to be constructed at the entrance of the Canopy Oaks 
Subdivision should not negatively impact or interfere with the reasonable enjoyment of 
adjacent or nearby property owners. The applicants are proposing to construct a high-quality 
subdivision with substantial amenities and large single family residences. The proposed entry 
features will be consistent with the grand, luxurious character of the overall neighborhood, 
while also serving to enhance the aesthetics of Roper Road and surrounding residential 
properties. In addition, this project will not negatively impact the standard of living of the 
citizens of the City.  

 
(2) The variance will allow a reasonable use of the property, which use is not out of character 

with other properties in the same zoning category; 
The requested variance allowing the construction of the proposed Canopy Oaks entry 
features will allow reasonable use of the property. There are many subdivisions throughout 
the City of Winter Garden that have entry features that exceed the requirements of City code. 
For example, the Stone Crest Subdivision sign wall, located on Winter Garden Vineland 
Road, is approximately 14’-8” tall. Near Stone Crest is the Bay Isle Subdivision, which has a 
sign wall that is approximately 9’-6” tall. The Hickory Hammock entrance features several 
sign/decorative monuments that are more than 15’ in height with subdivision signs that 
exceed the permitted 6’ height. Furthermore, granting this variance will not change the low 
density residential character of the district.    

 
(3) In the context presented, strict compliance with the land development regulation will not 

further any legitimate city objective or the benefits that would be achieved under the other 
variance criteria by the granting of the variance outweigh the benefits under this criteria if 
the variance were denied; 
Strict compliance with the City’s land development regulations will not further any 



12902 Roper Road – 6.30 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 4 

legitimate City objective.  This request does not encroach into any recorded easements, does 
not exceed the number of subdivision signs allowed, and meets all other development 
regulations of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances.  

 
(4) The granting of the variance is consistent with the city's comprehensive plan; and 

The variance is consistent with the provisions of the City’s Comprehensive Plan relating to 
low density residential neighborhood character. 

 
(5) The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make reasonable use of the land, 

building, or structure or the benefits that would be achieved under the other variance criteria 
by the granting of the variance outweigh the benefits under these criteria if the variance were 
denied. 
The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make reasonable use of the land.  
The proposed entry features will not negatively impact the neighbors and are consistent with 
features found at the entrances of many other subdivisions throughout the City. The proposal 
would also provide safety features for neighborhood residents- the pedestrian pavilion would 
be a safe place for children to wait for the morning school bus. Denying this variance does 
not benefit the property owner or the City. 

 
 

 

SUMMARY 
City Staff recommends approval of a variance to 118-1297(i), 102-126(a), and 118-352(1)b to 
allow the construction of two 10’-8” sign walls with 52 square feet of copy area, two 11’-2” tall 
entry gates, and a pedestrian pavilion structure located approximately 1’ from the side property 
line of a subdivision tract- all to be built at the entrance of the Canopy Oaks residential 
subdivision. 
 
NEXT STEP  
Obtain building permits while following all City of Winter Garden development regulations.  

 
ATTACHMENTS  

- Aerial Photo 
- Proposed Entry Site Plan 
- Proposed Entry Elevations and Details 
- Site Photos 
- Photos of Other Entry Features 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



12902 Roper Road – 6.30 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 5 

AERIAL PHOTO 
12902 Roper Road 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12902 Roper Road – 6.30 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 6 

PROPOSED ENTRY SITE PLAN 
12902 Roper Road 

 

 



12902 Roper Road – 6.30 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 7 

PROPOSED ENTRY DETAILS & ELEVATION 
12902 Roper Road 

 

 



12902 Roper Road – 6.30 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 8 

 

 
 

 



12902 Roper Road – 6.30 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 9 

 
SITE PHOTOS 

12902 Roper Road 
 

 
 

 
 
 



12902 Roper Road – 6.30 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

July 1, 2015 
Page 10 

PHOTOS OF OTHER ENTRY FEATURES 
 

 
 

 
END OF STAFF REPORT 



THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 
 

ITEM # 8 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
DATE:  06/30/2015 MEETING 

DATE: 07/06/2015 
 
SUBJECT: 46 W. Vining Street (VARIANCE) 
 PROJECT NAME 46 W. Vining Street, Browder Residence 
 PARCEL 

ID# 23-22-27-2468-00-900 
  

ISSUE: 
The applicant is requesting a Variance Permit to allow for the addition of a 
carport with storage room, breezeway extension and bathroom addition to 
the primary structure. 

  
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL/ANALYSIS: 
  
OWNER/APPLICANT: Frank and Jaqueline Browder 
  
CURRENT ZONING: R-2 
  
PROPOSED ZONING: N/A 
  
CURRENT FLU: Low Density Residential 
  
PROPOSED FLU: N/A 
  
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The subject property consists of a 0.24 ± acre lot located at 46 W. 
Vining Street.  The applicant is requesting a variance permit to allow 
the construction of a carport with storage room, breezeway extension 
and bathroom addition to the primary structure.  The variance is for 
the new addition to the principle structure exceeding the allowed rear 
yard setbacks (see attached Staff Report). 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 Staff recommends approval of the rear yard setback variance with 

the conditions outlined in the Staff Report. 
  
NEXT STEP(S):  
 Apply for a building permit to proceed with construction of the 

proposed structure addition.   
  
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 LOCATION MAP 

STAFF REPORT  

 



LOCATION MAP 
 

46 W. Vining Street 
 

VARIANCE 
 
 
 

 



CITY OF WINTER GARDEN 
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION 

300 West Plant Street - Winter Garden, Florida 34687-3011 ● (407) 656-4111 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
PREPARED BY:  JESSICA FRYE, PLANNER I 
DATE:  June 16, 2015 
SUBJECT:  VARIANCE 
   46 W Vining Street  (0.24  +/- ACRES) 
   PARCEL ID # 23-22-27-2468-00-900 
 
 APPLICANT:  Frank and Jacqueline Browder 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this report is to evaluate the request for a rear yard setback variance for the 
property located at 46 W. Vining Street in Winter Garden, Florida. The request is for a 16.9’ rear 
yard setback in lieu of the minimum required 22’ rear yard setback (20 percent of lot depth).  If 
approved, this variance will allow the construction of a carport with storage room, breezeway 
extension and bathroom addition to the primary structure. 
The subject property, located at the corner of S. Lakeview Avenue and W. Vining Street, is 
approximately 0.24 ± acre lot.  The map below depicts the location of the subject property within 
the City of Winter Garden municipal limits:  

 
The subject property carries the zoning designation R-2 and is designated LR (Low Density 
Residential) on the Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  



46 W. Vining Street – 0.175 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 29, 2015 
Page 2 

EXISTING USE 
The subject property is currently developed with a single family residence.  
 
ADJACENT LAND USE AND ZONING 
The properties immediately adjacent to the subject property are zoned R-2 and are within the 
City of Winter Garden Municipal limits.  
 
PROPOSED PROJECT 
The applicant is proposing to build a carport with a storage room toward the rear of the property 
with a breezeway leading to the main structure with a bathroom addition.  The addition will be 
approximately 771 square feet.   
 
CODE REFERENCE 
Section 118-398 (1) c. of the City Code addresses rear setbacks as 20 percent of the lot depth.  
The property currently has two depth lengths, so taking the average of the two depths gives a 
depth of 21.96’ or 22’.   
 
The applicant is seeking a variance to the minimum required rear yard setback of approximately 
22’to allow an addition to the home to be located approximately 16.9’ from the rear property.  
  
CODE REQUIREMENTS / CRITERIA 
Section 118-131 of the City Code that relates to the review criteria states that, “A variance may 
be granted from land development regulations by the planning and zoning board if the planning 
and zoning board concludes that literal enforcement of the provisions of land development 
regulations would result in either practical difficulties (for setback and parking provisions) or 
unnecessary hardships (for all other land development regulations) for the property at issue.”  
The code also lists the following criteria that are to be addressed before a variance can be 
approved. Underlined text is Staff’s comments concerning this particular petition. 
 
(1) Granting the variance will not cause or allow interference with the reasonable enjoyment of 

adjacent or nearby property owners or negatively impact the standard of living of the citizens 
of the city; 
The proposed addition to the primary structure at 16.9’ from the rear property line should not 
negatively impact or interfere with the reasonable enjoyment of adjacent or nearby property 
owners. Currently, the home is nonconforming with a rear yard setback of 9.7’ at the shortest 
dimension, the new addition does not encroach the rear setback any further than where the 
primary structure currently sits.  Several properties within the area are nonconforming due to 
the age of the neighborhood.  The subject property was built in 1938 and the homes 
immediately adjacent to the subject property were built in 1928 and 1925.  Other variances in 
the area include addresses 27 W. Story Road and 516 S. Lakeview Avenue.  27 W. Story 
Road was approved in July of 2004 which allowed a front yard setback of 26’ in leiu of 30’, a 
side yard setback of 7’ in lieu of 10’, a rear yard setback of 15’ in leiu of 20’ and the side 
yard setback of 9’ in leiu of 15’ along S. Boyd Street.  516 S. Lakeview Avenue was 
approved for a 5’8” rear yard setback in June of 1980.         

 
(2) The variance will allow a reasonable use of the property, which use is not out of character 



46 W. Vining Street – 0.175 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 29, 2015 
Page 3 

with other properties in the same zoning category; 
The requested variance allowing a 16.9’ rear yard setback in lieu of the minimum required 
22’rear yard setback to construct a carport addition with a storage room, breezeway and 
bathroom will allow reasonable use of the property. The proposed structure will help with the 
aesthetics of the property and update and repair the current conditions of the home.  Granting 
this variance will not change the low density residential character of the neighborhood.   

 
(3) In the context presented, strict compliance with the land development regulation will not 

further any legitimate city objective or the benefits that would be achieved under the other 
variance criteria by the granting of the variance outweigh the benefits under this criteria if 
the variance were denied; 
Strict compliance with the City’s land development regulations will not further any 
legitimate City objective.  This request does not encroach into any recorded easements, does 
not exceed the maximum impervious surface allowed for  the R-2 zoning (50%) and meets 
all other development regulations of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances.  

 
(4) The granting of the variance is consistent with the city's comprehensive plan; and 

The variance is consistent with the provisions of the City’s Comprehensive Plan relating to 
low density residential neighborhood character. 

 
(5) The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make reasonable use of the land, 

building, or structure or the benefits that would be achieved under the other variance criteria 
by the granting of the variance outweigh the benefits under these criteria if the variance were 
denied. 
The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make reasonable use of the land.  
The proposed additions to the primary structure will not negatively impact the neighbors and 
is consistent with rear yard setbacks enjoyed by many other property owners throughout the 
City. Denying this variance does not benefit the property owner or the City. 

 
 

SUMMARY 
Staff recommends approval of the variance to Section 118-398 (1) c. . for a 16.9’ rear yard 
setback in lieu of the minimum required 22’ rear yard setback.  If approved, this variance will 
allow the construction of a carport with storage room, breezeway extension and bathroom 
addition to the primary structure. 
 to allow rear yard setback with the following condition: 

1. The additions must architecturally match the primary structure. 
 
NEXT STEP  
Obtain building permits while following all City of Winter Garden development regulations.  

ATTACHMENTS  
- Aerial Photo 
- Proposed Site Plan 
- Proposed Construction Plans 
- Site Photos 



46 W. Vining Street – 0.175 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 29, 2015 
Page 4 

 
AERIAL PHOTO 
46 W. Vining Street 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

516 S. Lakeview 
Rear Yard Setback 

27 W. Story Road 
Front, Sides and 

Rear Setback 
 



46 W. Vining Street – 0.175 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 29, 2015 
Page 5 

 
PROPOSED SITE PLAN 

46 W. Vining Street 



46 W. Vining Street – 0.175 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 29, 2015 
Page 6 

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION PLANS 
46 W. Vining Street 

 



46 W. Vining Street – 0.175 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 29, 2015 
Page 7 

 

 
 



46 W. Vining Street – 0.175 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 29, 2015 
Page 8 

 
SITE PHOTOS 

46 W. Vining Street 
 

 
 

This photo is the front of the property; the picture was taken from the north side of the property 
facing toward the south.  The east side of the property is where new addition will be built. 

N 

   
Proposed Addition Area 

 
Property Line 

 
Dimmensions 



46 W. Vining Street – 0.175 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 29, 2015 
Page 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 This photo shows the east side of the property; the picture was taken from the northeast side of 

the property facing toward the southeast.  The proposed structure will encompass this area. 

N 

10.49
 

   
Proposed Addition Area 

 
Property Line 

 
Dimmensions 



46 W. Vining Street – 0.175 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 29, 2015 
Page 10 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This photo shows the east side of the property; the picture was taken from the southeast side of 
the property facing toward the northeast.  This picture indicates the area in which the structure 

will sit from the rear. 

N 

11.07’ 

10.49’ 

   
Proposed Addition Area 

 
Property Line 

 
Dimmensions 



46 W. Vining Street – 0.175 +/- acres 
Variance - Staff Report 

June 29, 2015 
Page 11 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

END OF STAFF REPORT 
 
 
 

This is the rear area of the property; the picture was taken from the southeast side of the 
property facing toward the southwest corner of the property.  This photo indicates the 

proximity of the primary structure to the rear property line. 

N 

16.9’ 

9.7’ 

   
Proposed Addition Area 

 
Property Line 

 
Dimmensions 


	2015-07-06 PZ Agenda ONLY
	2015-06-01 PZ Minutes DRAFT
	Item #4
	420 Roper Road P&Z Cover Memo
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	PZ Location Map
	Roper Road - 420 (7.15 Acres - Sonata W Orange Assisted Living PUD-Rezoning) Staff Report
	Roper Road - 420 7.15 Acres - Sonata W Orange Campus PUD-Ordinance 15-55
	Sonata West Orange Campus - Exhibit B
	C000 Cover Sheet - PD WG Health Village
	C100 PD SITE PLAN - WG Health Village
	L0.01 PD LANDSCAPE PLANTING PLAN
	L0.02-TA-PLAN LEGEND AND NOTES
	L0.03 wall detail
	A.1-East Elevation
	A.2-North Elevation
	A.3-South Elevation
	A.4-West Elevation


	Item #5
	Oak Trail P & Z Cover Memo
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	LOCATION MAP
	Oak Trail (Pre-Plat) Staff Report
	Oak Trail PPA

	Item #6
	16303 Marsh Road - P & Z Cover Memo
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	LOCATION MAP
	Marsh Rd 16303 - Variance P&Z Staff Report
	CODE REFERENCES
	Sec. 118-1297(i) of the City Code of Ordinances addresses maximum height for subdivision walls and/or buffers. This section states that all screen walls built adjacent to a public rights-of-way are limited to 6’ in height: Height of the screen wall sh...
	The applicant is seeking a variance to allow 8’ tall subdivision sign walls, which exceed the maximum permitted subdivision wall height by 2’.
	Sec. 102-126(a) of the City Code of Ordinances addresses standards for permanent on-premise signs in the residential and planned unit development districts. This section states that all residential and PUD subdivision signs are permitted to be a maxim...
	The applicant is seeking a variance to allow 8’ tall subdivision sign walls, which exceed the maximum permitted subdivision sign height by 2’.
	CODE REQUIREMENTS / CRITERIA


	Item #7
	12902 Roper Road - P & Z Cover Memo
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	LOCATION MAP
	12902 Roper Road - Variance P&Z Staff Report
	CODE REFERENCES
	Sec. 118-1297(i) of the City Code of Ordinances addresses maximum height for subdivision walls and/or buffers. This section states that all walls and screens built adjacent to a public rights-of-way are limited to 6’ in height: Height of the screen wa...
	The applicant is seeking a variance to allow the construction of two 10-8” tall subdivision sign walls and two 11’-2” tall entry gates, which exceed the maximum permitted subdivision wall & buffer height by 4’-8” and 5’-2” respectively.
	Sec. 102-126(a) of the City Code of Ordinances addresses standards for permanent on-premise signs in the residential and planned unit development districts. This section states that all residential and PUD subdivision signs are permitted to be a maxim...
	The applicant is seeking a variance to allow the construction of two 10-8” tall subdivision sign walls, which exceed the maximum permitted subdivision sign height by 4’-8’. The applicant is also seeking to install a sign with 52 square feet of sign ar...
	Sec. 118-352(1) of the City Code of Ordinances addresses minimum yard requirements for structures built on R-1B zoned properties. This section states that in the R-1B residential district, the minimum yard requirements are, “Front: 25 feet, Side: ten ...
	The applicant is seeking a side yard setback variance in order to allow the construction of a pedestrian gate pavilion structure that’s built approximately 1’ from the subdivision tract side property line, which exceeds the minimum 10’ side yard setba...
	CODE REQUIREMENTS / CRITERIA


	Item #8
	46 W Vining Street Cover Sheet
	THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN
	PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

	PZ Location Map
	46 W Vining Street - Variance P&Z Staff Report
	CODE REFERENCE
	Section 118-398 (1) c. of the City Code addresses rear setbacks as 20 percent of the lot depth.  The property currently has two depth lengths, so taking the average of the two depths gives a depth of 21.96’ or 22’.
	The applicant is seeking a variance to the minimum required rear yard setback of approximately 22’to allow an addition to the home to be located approximately 16.9’ from the rear property.
	CODE REQUIREMENTS / CRITERIA





